
 
 
 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

Wednesday, July 6, 2011 
2:00 P.M. 

 
 

Pearl S. Buck House 
520 Dublin Road 

Perkasie, PA 18944 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2. Approval of Minutes for the Meeting of June 1, 2011 
 

3. Information Items 
- Chairman‟s Report 
- Executive Director‟s Report 
- Natural Areas Inventory Update (2011) 

 Presentation: Ann Rhoads 
  Morris Arboretum, University of Pennsylvania 

- New Hope Borough Comprehensive Plan 
 Presentation: Cathy Gauthier 
 

4. Action Items 
- Act 247 Reviews 
 

5. Old Business – Schedule for installation of commemorative plaque  
 

6. New Business 
 
7. Public Comment and Press Questions 
 
8. Adjournment 

 
 

 
Please remember to contact us at 

215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 
 

AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 
 



 2 

  



 3 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

Minutes of Meeting 
June 1, 2011 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph A. Cullen, Jr.; Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; Ed Kisselback, Jr.; 

David R. Nyman; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; Walter Wydro 
 

STAFF PRESENT: Charles T. McIlhinney; Lynn T. Bush; Timothy A. Koehler; Richard G. 
Brahler, Jr.; Margaret M. McKevitt; Donna W. Byers; Arthur F. Breitinger; 
Paul W. Gordon; Marie Monaghan; Michael A. Roedig; Dennis P. Livrone; 
Alice J. Lambert; John Ranieri (Intern) 

  
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Kisselback called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM with a moment of silence 

and the pledge of allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF MAY 4, 2011:  
 Upon motion of Mr. Goodnoe, seconded by Mr. Pellegrino, with the vote being 7-0, the minutes 

of the May 4, 2011 meeting were approved.  
 

INFORMATION ITEMS: CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORTS 
 
 Chairman’s Report 

Mr. Kisselback remarked on the success of the last comprehensive plan stakeholder meeting and 
thanked the BCPC staff for their good presentations and coordination of the events. Ms. Bush 
added that the meetings were a good opportunity for people in the community to recognize and 
get to know the BCPC staff better.  

 
 Executive Director’s Report 

Ms. Bush commented on recent newspaper articles highlighting newly enforced Pennsylvania 
Department of Environmental Protection (PaDEP) stormwater management regulations. The 
local enforcement of the regulations is starting in 23 municipalities in the Neshaminy Creek 
Watershed. Ms. Bush said last year a Neshaminy Creek Watershed Stormwater Management 
Plan was developed in accordance with the requirements of the Pennsylvania Stormwater 
Management Act 167 that required all Pennsylvania counties prepare stormwater management 
plans for designated watersheds. The PaDEP approved the plan and following that approval 
municipalities had six months to revise their ordinances. Some municipalities did not meet their 
deadline. Ms. Bush said she and Ms. Lambert are working with the municipalities on the 
stormwater ordinances. 

 
Ms. Bush yielded the remainder of her time to Mr. Roedig. 

 
 Stakeholder Meetings Briefing: Michael Roedig 

Mr. Roedig provided the board with a handout: Summary of Comments from Stakeholder 
Meetings (attached hereto and incorporated herein as Attachment “A”). At each meeting held, 
attendees were organized into groups where comprehensive plan topics were openly discussed 
between BCPC staff and participants. The insight and input will help shape the emphasis, 
direction, and recommended strategies of the Bucks County Comprehensive Plan update. Mr. 
Roedig said the summary of comments will be available on the County‟s website and the staff 
will continue to use the statements to shape the plan. 



 4 

 
Mr. Kisselback asked whether any comments were made on brownfields and industrial 
development. Mr. Roedig answered yes, under Group 3–Economic Development. Mr. Kisselback 
polled the board for questions and thanked Mr. Roedig for his good job. 

 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
 Act 247 Reviews 

BCPC review for Solebury Township #41-11-1, Proposal to Amend the Zoning Ordinance and 
Zoning Map––Carversville Village, was handed to the board prior to the meeting. Ms. Bush 
provided a background on existing zoning standards and explained the proposed action. Mr. 
Kisselback asked for a description of VC-C (Carversville Village Commercial District) and VR-
C (Carversville Village Residential District). Discussion focused on village conversion. Mr. 
Kisselback polled the board for questions. 
 
The reviews of June 1, 2011 were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. On 
motion of Mr. Wydro, seconded by Ms. Pierce, the board approved the June 1, 2011 Act 247 
reviews, including BCPC review #41-11-1. There were no abstentions. 
 

 Bucks County Open Space and Greenway Plan: Paul Gordon 
Mr. Gordon announced the Bucks County Open Space and Greenways Plan was scheduled to be 
presented at the June 15th Commissioners meeting. Mr. Gordon provided a background for the 
plan, stating that the Pennsylvania Greenways–An Action Plan for Creating Connections (2001) 
established a strategy for creating a comprehensive, statewide greenway network by the year 
2020, and Bucks County received a grant from the Pennsylvania Department of Conservation and 
Natural Resources to fund the project. The purpose of the plan is to provide a decision-making, 
implementation, and management tool designed to protect and create linkages between the 
County‟s vast natural resources, open space and farmland, recreation facilities, and historic and 
cultural resources. 
 
Highlights of Mr. Gordon‟s PowerPoint presentation included: definition and benefits of open 
space and greenways, related planning efforts, planning process and plan development, existing 
conditions and resources, the greenways system, and implementation and funding. 
 
Mr. Nyman suggested using the wording “eminent domain” rather than “condemnation” in the 
document. Mr. Gordon responded that this change had been made in the final plan. 
 
Mr. Kisselback thanked Mr. Gordon for his good presentation. Mr. Nyman commended Mr. 
Gordon for his extensive legwork that included meeting with representatives from all Bucks 
County municipalities, public outreach, and the collection of data for the plan. Ms. Bush said the 
plan is a terrific product. 
 
By motion of Mr. Nyman and seconded by Mr. Pellegrino, the board unanimously accepted and 
recommended the Bucks County Open Space and Greenways Plan be submitted to the Bucks 
County Commissioners for their adoption. 

 
OLD BUSINESS: The board requested an update on the commemorative plaque that will designate the 

Bucks County Planning Commission 4th floor conference room after past chairman Robert 
Grunmeier. Ms. Bush said the plaque was delivered and she presented it to the board. The board 
requested family members be contacted and invited to a dedication of the conference room by the 



 5 

Commissioners at the next in-house BCPC meeting. It was suggested there be a press release and 
photo taken. Ms. Bush said she will make the arrangements.  

 
NEW BUSINESS: Ms. Bush introduced BCPC intern, John Ranieri. Mr. Ranieri has one semester 

remaining at Bloomsburg University where he will be a graduate in geography and urban 
planning. He is currently working in the BCPC environmental unit on the Natural Resources 
Inventory update. Mr. Ranieri said he is looking forward to working in transportation and other 
BCPC divisions this summer. 

 
Ms. Bush said she is chairing a committee the Commissioners appointed to address the 90,000-
square-foot space that will become vacant in the courthouse once the new Justice Center is built 
and operational. The board offered thoughts on possible businesses that could occupy the space. 
Ms. Bush said the committee is meeting every two weeks and is in the basic fact-finding phase. 
Ms. Bush said she will continue to update the board on this matter. Building permits are still 
being processed for the Justice Center. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT AND PRESS QUESTIONS: There were no public comments or press questions. 

 
ADJOURNMENT:  Mr. Nyman moved to adjourn the meeting at 2:50 PM. 

 
Submitted by, 
 

       Donna W. Byers 
Staff Secretary 

  



 6 

  



 7 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Executive Director’s Report 

June 2011 
 
Bucks County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update – Our County Planning Commission staff has 
been working with Pennsylvania Emergency Management Agency (PEMA) and our own 
Emergency Management agency to prepare a Hazard Mitigation Plan update for the county. We 
have to do this every five years. It addresses a wide range of potential hazards, with flooding 
being the most likely hazard in Bucks County. But others, such as winter storms, drought, 
hurricanes, etc., are also addressed. Every municipality needed to participate in meetings and 
contributions to the plan. We had 53 out of 54 attend meetings and fulfill the necessary 
requirements. Participation and adoption is required for municipalities and the county to be 
eligible for disaster relief. Once the plan is approved by PEMA and FEMA, the county and the 
municipalities will adopt it. We will make a presentation to the BCPC board as part of the county 
adoption.  
 
Metropolitan Caucus Update – The Metropolitan Caucus, the five-county organization that the 
County Commissioners participate in with their neighboring counties, has been tracking the 
Pennsylvania budget to anticipate the impact of cuts on county functions. The most significant is 
the reduction in the Human Services Development Fund, which provides funding for many social 
service agencies in the county. Funding for planning and stormwater management has been cut 
as well. 
 
Bucks County Open Space and Greenway Plan – The plan that you saw at the June meeting 
was adopted by the County Commissioners on June 15.  
 
Municipal Energy Ordinances – We have been working with several municipalities on energy 
ordinances, dealing with wind, solar, and outdoor wood-fired boilers.  
 
Lower Bucks Hospital Redevelopment Area Plan – The declaration of blight and 
redevelopment area plan for Lower Bucks Hospital that the BCPC board voted on it May is on 
the County Commissioners‟ agenda for July 6. 
 
Municipal Grants for Traffic Improvement – Several of our municipalities received 
PennDOT grants. These are: 
 
 Bensalem Signal Improvements $36,000 
 Bristol Sign Replacements $20,758 

Buckingham LED Signal Upgrades $26,950 
Chalfont Fire Station Warning $70,000 
New Britain Traffic Control System $34,500 
Nockamixon LED Traffic Signals $10,000 
Perkasie Route 563/Park Avenue Signal $12,500 
 

 Total $210,708 
  



 8 

 
 
 

 
 



 9 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 
June 2011 

 
PLANNING SERVICES 

 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 

Municipal Planning Services 
 Meeting Attendance – Attended the regular planning commission meetings of Buckingham 

and Milford townships and the Quakertown Area Planning Committee. 
 New Hope Borough Comprehensive Plan – The Public Review Draft of the Comprehensive 

Plan for New Hope Borough was presented at a borough Planning Commission public 
meeting. The Planning Commission recommended that Council adopt the draft Plan and the 
Addendum containing public comments. Continued preparation of the Plan summary brochure. 

 Plumstead Township Comprehensive Plan – Presented a summary of the draft plan to the 
Planning Commission at their public meeting. The Planning Commission recommended 
forwarding the plan to the Board of Supervisors for their approval. 

 Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan – Initiated contract process to prepare a 
comprehensive plan for the borough. Began researching information necessary for 
preparation of the plan. 

 Hulmeville Borough Zoning Ordinance – Met with Borough Council to review the revisions 
to the zoning ordinance that resulted from Council‟s review. 

 
Bucks County Comprehensive Plan 
 Revised second draft of the Community Facilities and Services section. 
 Revised the draft demographics element (with comparison to recently obtained 2009 

American Community Survey information and 2010 Census) of the Measurements of Growth 
section. 

 Completed review of the second draft of the Transportation section based on comments on 
the first draft. 

 Completed review of and began preparing revisions to the first draft of the Housing section. 
 Completed review of and began preparing revisions to revised first draft of Water Resources, 

Wastewater Facilities, Hazard Mitigation, and Stormwater Management sections. 
 Prepared narrative for Sustainability and Smart Growth sections. 
 Researched comprehensive plan indicators and implementation bench marks. 
 Summarized group notes from community stakeholders at the three comprehensive plan 

workshops and placed a meeting summary on the County website. 
 Preparing Plan Introduction including the public participation process. 
 Developing the process of preparing a final complete plan along with the steps needed to 

prepare a digital plan with hyperlinks. 
 
Planning Information and Agency Coordination 
 Provided information to the public on various topics including development proposals, 

review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations, floodplain, and community 
background (or profiles). 



 10 

 Researched the best way for local regulations (zoning ordinances) to comply with federal 
regulations (U.S. Fair Housing Act) that ensure persons with disabilities the right for 
„reasonable accommodation‟. 

 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 
 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 

 
Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 
 13 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 
   0 Sketch Plans 
   2 Sewage Facility Planning Modules 
   6 Municipals 
   0 Traffic Impact Studies 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 
Bucks County Comprehensive Plan 
 Met with BCPC staff to determine how public meeting feedback will be incorporated into 

comprehensive plan.  
 Prepared additional questions and responses from break-out sessions for potential inclusion 

in comprehensive plan update. 
 Revised the Stormwater Management section.  
 Revising Energy section. 

 
Water Resources Planning 
 Provided input to general public regarding water resources planning and educational outreach 

efforts.  
 

Bucks Employees Green Initiative (BEGIN) Committee 
 Conducted quarterly meeting of the BEGIN Committee. 
 Researched potential funding sources for educational outreach efforts and landscape 

demonstration projects.  
 Met with BEGIN members to discuss Landscape Subcommittee goals, proposed projects 

moving forward. 
 

Alternative Energy Planning  
 Reviewed DVRPC draft Alternative Energy Ordinance Framework document for Wind, 

Solar and Geothermal based upon updates from May 11 meeting.  
 Reviewed Rooftop Solar Challenge to Induce Market Transformation funding opportunity 

announcement (FOA) to seek regional projects that improve market conditions for 
commercial and residential rooftop solar photovoltaics (PV). 

 
Stormwater and Flood Management Planning 
 Assisting municipal engineers in amending and revising municipal ordinances to be 

consistent with the Neshaminy Watershed Act 167 Stormwater Management Plan.  
 Attended Pennypack Creek Act 167 Plan public meeting and provided comment on revisions 

needed to make the plan more consistent with other plans in Bucks County.  
 Assisting with Pennypack Creek Act 167 Plan revisions in coordination with Montgomery 

and Philadelphia Counties.  



 11 

 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Plan 
 Presented the plan to the Bucks County Planning Commission board on June 1. 
 Presented the plan to the County Commissioners on June 15. 
 Assembling materials needed for final grant submission. 
 Attended Active Transportation Summit. 
 Met with DVRPC staff concerning the potential Regional Trails Program grant. 

 
Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 Submitted comments and changes to the draft plan to the consultant. 
 Consultant submitted plan to PEMA. 
 Incorporating the new format into the hazard mitigation section of the Comp Plan. 
 
Recycling and Solid Waste 
 Conducted the second of the 2011 Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) collection events at 

Upper Bucks VoTech. 
 Attended regional (five-county) HHW planning meeting. 
 Preparing submission of HHW grant to DEP 
 Preparing a few cost saving options for electronic recycling. 
 Working collaboratively with administrative staff and intern on The Recycling Guide. 
 Met with two municipalities about possible recycling options. 
 Developing a model waste and recycling ordinance. 
 
 

TRANSPORTATION AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) 
 
TRANSPORTATION 
 

General Transportation Planning 
 Assembled background information for Intersection Safety Study. 
 Conducted County Bike Plan Task Force Meeting. 
 Reviewed draft county bike plan. 
 Attended follow-up meeting for Road Safety Audit for Interstate 95. 
 Reviewed draft Bucks County Hazard Mitigation Plan with respect to railroad information. 
 Reviewed draft Regional Pedestrian/Bicycling Handbook. 
 Attended Smart Transportation Seminar. 
   
Public Transportation 

 Attended SEPTA Fare Payment Task Force Meeting. 
 Attended TMA Bucks Annual Meeting. 
 Processed contracts for Lower Bucks Mini Transit Center Project. 
 Participated in FY 2012 Job Access Reverse Commute Committee teleconference. 

 
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 
 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development 

reviews. 
 Attended Review/Design Meeting for bank project in Newtown Township. 
  
Transportation Improvement Program 
 Provided TIP information to various individuals and agencies. 
 Attended US Route 202 Executive Committee Meeting. 



 12 

 
Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC) 
 Attended Regional Transportation Committee Meeting. 
 Attended meeting with DVRPC Staff to discuss Regional Trails Program Funding. 

 
 

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS 
 

Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 
 Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 
 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 
 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 
 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 
 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 
 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 
 Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 
 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 
 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 
 Continued technical support for MapJazz GIS Web Viewer. 
 Continued development of GIS datasets for inclusion in ESRI hosted Community Map. 
 Attended in-house ESRI hosted Community Map Program update training. 
 Continued support of mobile GIS applications for County Consortium members. 
 Continued enhancements and support to EMA mobile field application. 
 Continued support of ArcGIS Mobile Data Inventory Collection solution to Warwick Twp. 
 Attended DVRPC hosted Region-Wide GIS Transportation web conference. 
 Attended Information Resources Exchange Group Meeting at DVRPC. 
 Continued support in development of GIS Data Reviewer tool development and application. 
 Participated in conference call with IT and Vision Air/GeoComm consultants. 
 Provided updated assessment data to Falls Township GIS Consortium. 
 
GIS Map Production 
 Continued work on the 2011 County Road Map. 
 
GIS Transportation 
 Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 































































































































































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. 

2. 

3. 

 
4. 

5. 

6. 
 
7. 
 
8. 

AG

BUCKS 

R
Mee

Pledge of A
 
Approval o

Informatio
- Chairm
- Execut

Action Item
- Naval 

  Shena
  Certif

- Act 24
 
Old Busin
 
New Busin

Public Com

Adjournm

 

P
215-345

GENDA SUB

COUNTY P

Wednesda
2

Robert H. “B
eting Room

The
1260 A
Doyles

21

AG

Allegiance 

of Minutes f

on Items 
man’s Repor
tive Director

ms 
Air Station 
andoah Woo
fication of R

47 Reviews

ness 

ness 

mment and P

ment 

Please remem
5-3400 if you

BJECT TO C

 
 
 

PLANNING

ay, August 3
2:00 P.M. 

 
Barney” Gr

m Dedication
e Almshouse 

Almshouse Roa
stown, PA 1890
15-345-3400 

 

GENDA
 
 

for the Meet

rt 
r’s Report 

Off-site Hou
ods Housing
Redevelopme

Press Questi

mber to cont
u cannot atte

CHANGE P

G COMMISS

, 2011 

runmeier 
n Ceremony

ad 
01 

ting of July 6

using 
g Area 
ent Area 

ions 

tact us at 
end. Thank y

PRIOR TO M

SION 

y 

6, 2011 

you. 

MEETING 



 2

  



The  

Bucks County  

Planning Commission Board 
 

cordially invites you to  

join  in  a special  

dedication ceremony to  

commemorate the naming of the  
 

Robert H. “Barney” Grunmeier 

Meeting Room 
 

August 3, 2011  at 2:30 PM 

Bucks County Planning Commission 

1260 Almshouse Road 

Neshaminy Manor Center 

Doylestown, PA 18901 

 

IN MEMORY OF 16 YEARS OF SERVICE TO THE 

 BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

I nv i t a t i o n  

Kindly RSVP 

Phone: 215-345-3400  
Fax: 215-345-3886 

Email: bcpc@co.bucks.pa.us 
 

A dessert reception will follow  

the ceremony. 

 

Bucks  County  
 

Commissioners 

Charles H. Martin, Chairman 

Robert G. Loughery, Vice Chairman 

Diane M. Ellis-Marseglia, LCSW 

Brian Hessenthaler 
Chief Operating Officer 

 

Planning Commission Board 

Edward Kisselback, Jr., Chairman 

David R. Nyman, Vice Chairman 

Walter S. Wydro, Secretary 

Members 

Joseph A. Cullen, Jr., Esq. 

Raymond W. Goodnoe 

Darrin M. Hoffman 

Robert M. Pellegrino 

Carol A. Pierce 

David H. Platt 

 

Lynn T. Bush 
County Chief Clerk 

Executive Director Planning Commission 



 



 3

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

Minutes of Meeting 
July 6, 2011 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph A. Cullen, Jr.; Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; Darrin M. Hoffman; 

Ed Kisselback, Jr.; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; David H. Platt 
 

STAFF PRESENT: Charles T. McIlhinney; Lynn T. Bush; Timothy A. Koehler; David P. 
Johnson; Donna W. Byers; Arthur F. Breitinger; Kristine S. Kern, Catherine 
H. Gauthier 
 

GUESTS: Ann F. Rhoads, Ph.D., Morris Arboretum, University of Pennsylvania 
Amanda Cregan, Staff Writer, The Intelligencer 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Kisselback called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM with a moment of silence 

and the pledge of allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF JUNE 1, 2011:  
 Upon motion of Mr. Pellegrino, seconded by Ms. Pierce, the minutes of the June 1, 2011 meeting 

were approved. Mr. Hoffman abstained as he was not present. 
 

INFORMATION ITEMS: CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORTS 
 

 Chairman’s Report 
The meeting of the Bucks County Planning Commission was held at the Pearl S. Buck House. 
Mr. Kisselback said he appreciated the hospitality/accommodations and remarked on the 
beautiful facility and landscape. 
 

 Executive Director’s Report 
Ms. Bush spoke on the nearly 70-acre conservation easement on the grounds of Pearl S. Buck 
International. The preservation included property that could have been subdivided and saleable. 
Acquisition was made possible through the Bucks County Open Space Program and a grant 
received from the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources. Ms. Bush further 
described some of the property improvements. 
 
Ms. Bush said the Commissioners unanimously approved the Lower Bucks Hospital Bond at this 
morning’s meeting. The BCPC board passed resolutions in May of this year (1) to certify the 
Hospital as a blighted area, and (2) approve the redevelopment plan for the area. Ms. Bush said 
there was lobbying for the plan by persons in charge of the hospital as well as representatives 
from the Bucks County Redevelopment Authority. Ms. Bush commented that the work done by 
the BCPC board made it a better presentation at today’s Commissioners meeting. The County 
Commissioners entered into an agreement to guarantee bond payments funded through casino 
table gaming revenues which accumulated $800,000 in the first eight months. Mr. Kisselback 
expressed his appreciation to the board for their participation. 
 
Ms. Bush said PennDOT announced municipal grants for traffic improvements for several Bucks 
County municipalities totaling $210,708. A municipal breakdown for the improvement grants is 
listed in the June 2011 Executive Director’s Report. 

  



 4

 Natural Areas Inventory Update (2011) 
Ms. Kern provided introductions to senior botanist Dr. Ann Rhoads of the Morris Arboretum of 
the University of Pennsylvania. Dr. Rhoads updated the Natural Areas Inventory (NAI) which 
was prepared in 1999. Ms. Kern said the findings of the Natural Areas Inventory Update (2011) 
will be used to prioritize projects under the Bucks County Open Space Program. 
 
Dr. Rhoads thanked the BCPC board for the opportunity to tell about the NAI update. The 1999 
NAI guided land protection in Bucks County for the past 12 years. Highlights of Dr. Rhoads’ 
presentation included the 13 conservation landscapes identified in the NAI update where land 
protection should be focused, critical ecosystem functions (water, air quality, waste 
decomposition and mineral cycling, and sustaining biodiversity), and management of natural 
lands–specifically deer overabundance and non-native invasive species. 
 
Mr. Hoffman commented on the bat population and the threat of white nose syndrome. Dr. 
Rhoads responded that 6 months ago they were hopeful, but the mortality rate is very high and 
added that she had read in a scientific paper that the little brown bat may be extinct in 10 or 15 
years. Bats consume a lot of insects and perhaps some new species may evolve, but for now it is 
unclear what will happen.  
 
Mr. Kisselback thanked Dr. Rhoads for her presentation. 
 

 New Hope Borough Comprehensive Plan 
Ms. Gauthier gave a PowerPoint presentation on the New Hope Borough Comprehensive Plan. 
Highlights of Ms. Gauthier’s presentation included: existing land use and zoning, population and 
housing growth, tourism, downtown business, historic and scenic attributes, recreation 
opportunities, residential neighborhoods, planning elements, goals, and implementation priorities 
and recommended actions. Discussion followed on boat launch access to the Delaware River and 
walking areas in the borough. Mr. Kisselback thanked Ms. Gauthier for her good presentation. 

 
ACTION ITEMS 
 

 Act 247 Reviews 
The reviews of July 6, 2011 were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. On 
motion of Mr. Cullen, seconded by Mr. Pellegrino, the board approved the July 6, 2011 Act 247 
reviews. There were no abstentions. 

 
OLD BUSINESS: Mr. Hoffman requested a copy of the Bucks County Open Space and Greenways 

Plan. 
 
 Ms. Bush announced the dedication ceremony for naming of the Bucks County Planning 

Commission 4th floor conference room after past chairman Robert Grunmeier will be scheduled 
for the August meeting. 

 
 Mr. Koehler gave a status of the Bucks County Comprehensive Plan Update, stating many 

narratives have been completed and he anticipates a complete plan review in October. Discussion 
focused on a digital version of the plan that would incorporate hyperlinks and sidebars. 

 
 Mr. Cullen asked whether there was any news from the courthouse committee addressing 

vacancies once the Justice Center is built. Ms. Bush said the committee is still in a fact-finding 
mode. There is a strong sentiment not to move one department to another without 
improvements/updates being made where needed. Ms. Bush said the permits for the Justice 



 5

Center have been issued and construction is moving forward. Mr. Hoffman asked if there is a 
possibility the rotunda in the courthouse will be used for a performing arts center. Ms. Bush 
responded that all options are on the table for discussion, including public space.  

 
NEW BUSINESS: Mr. Cullen announced that he will not be present at the August meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT AND PRESS QUESTIONS: There were no public comments or press questions. 

 
ADJOURNMENT:  Upon the motion of Mr. Cullen, seconded by Mr. Goodnoe, the meeting adjourned 

at 3:15 PM. 
 

 
Submitted by, 
 

       Donna W. Byers 
Staff Secretary 

 
  



 6

  



 7

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Executive Director’s Report 

July 2011 
 
 
Economic Development Council – The County Commissioners have followed up on the 
Economic Development Report adopted in 2010 by establishing a new council to implement the 
recommendations. The Council will be made up mainly of people in the business world (real 
estate, finance, manufacturing, etc), with an advisory group made up of the agency people 
(including us) that have some role in economic development. 
 
New County Road Map – Our staff has updated our county road map. It will be printed in the 
next two months and will be available for distribution. The road map was printed about 6 years 
ago, and those maps are no longer available.  
 
Red Cross Shelter – There has been much discussion during July about the future of the Red 
Cross shelter in Lower Bucks County. The shelter is run by the Lower Bucks Chapter of the Red 
Cross, on County property, but the Lower Bucks Chapter was taken over by the Red Cross of 
Southeastern Pennsylvania, known as SEPA. Nationally Red Cross does not run shelters, and the 
SEPA group has made it clear that they are looking for successors to run the shelter – it will not 
be a Red Cross function in the future. There are five groups that have submitted proposals to 
operate the shelter: 3 local and 2 national groups. Much county money, from a variety of sources, 
goes to the Red Cross. 
 
  



 8

 
 
 

 
 



 9

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 

July 2011 
 

PLANNING SERVICES 
 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 

Municipal Planning Services 
 

> Meeting Attendance – Attended the regular planning commission meetings of Buckingham 
and Milford townships, Sellersville Borough and the Quakertown Area Planning Committee. 

> Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan – Reviewed existing planning documents and 
continued researching information necessary for preparation of the plan. 

> New Hope Borough Comprehensive Plan – Prepared and presented PowerPoint regarding 
the borough’s proposed comprehensive plan to BCPC board. In addition, prepared and 
presented a PowerPoint at New Hope Borough Council’s public hearing for plan approval. 
Borough Council adopted a resolution approving the new comprehensive plan. 

> Plumstead Township Comprehensive Plan – Public hearing for adoption of the plan is 
scheduled for the Board of Supervisors’ meeting in August. 

> Sellersville Borough Comprehensive Plan – Initiated a reexamination of the borough 
comprehensive plan and discussed past issues and current concerns that would necessitate an 
update of the plan. 

> Hulmeville Borough Zoning Ordinance – Met with Borough Council to continue review of 
the revisions to the zoning ordinance that resulted from Council’s review. 

 
Bucks County Comprehensive Plan 
> Reviewing the revised second draft of the Community Facilities and Services section. 
> Revising the draft demographics element (with comparison to recently obtained 2010 Census 

information) of the Measurements of Growth section. 
> Preparing revisions to the draft of the Housing section, Water Resources, Wastewater 

Facilities, Hazard Mitigation, and Stormwater Management sections, Energy Conservation 
and Sustainability section. 

> Preparing narrative for Sustainability and Smart Growth sections.  
> Preparing comprehensive plan indicators and implementation bench marks. 
> Preparing the Plan Introduction including the public participation process. 
> Preparing a discussion of the plan’s foundations, including Sustainable Development, 

Stewardship, and the history of planning at the BCPC. 
> Continued preparing a complete plan along with the steps needed to prepare a digital plan 

with hyperlinks. Prepared hyperlinks listing of farm bills, legislative initiatives, and other 
agricultural references for the Agricultural Sustainability chapter of the plan. 

> Developed draft introductory statements for the comprehensive plan principles. 
 

Planning Information and Agency Coordination 
> Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, 

development proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations, floodplain, 
and community background (or profiles). 

> Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 



 10

> Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 
 

Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 
> 8 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 
> 2 Sketch Plans 
> 3 Sewage Facility Planning Module 
> 8 Municipal Ordinance reviews 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 

 
Water Resources Planning 
> Provided input to general public regarding water resources planning and educational outreach 

efforts. 
 

Coastal Zone Management (CZM) 
> Attended DEP/DVRPC CZM Steering Committee FY2012 grant program planning meeting. 
 
Bucks Employees Green Initiative (BEGIN) Committee 
> Researched potential funding sources for educational outreach efforts and landscape 

demonstration projects.  
> Did additional work on the EPA composting grant. Prepared resolution and memo for 

placement on Commissioners’ agenda. 
 

Alternative Energy Planning  
> Attended conference calls regarding Rooftop Solar Challenge to Induce Market 

Transformation funding opportunity announcement (FOA). The FOA seeks regional projects 
that improve market conditions for commercial and residential rooftop solar photovoltaics 
(PV). Discussed with other counties, PECO, and the City of Philadelphia representatives, the 
opportunities for the region and how this grant would be carried out.  

 
Stormwater and Flood Management Planning 
> Assisting municipal engineers in amending and revising municipal ordinances to be 

consistent with the Neshaminy Watershed Act 167 Stormwater Management Plan.  
> Assisting with Pennypack Creek Act 167 Plan revisions in coordination with Montgomery 

and Philadelphia Counties. 
> Researching information to assist municipalities with the revised NPDES MS4 permit due to 

be released this fall.  
 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Plan 
> Developing Executive Summary version of the plan. 
> Assembling materials needed for final grant submission. 
 
Recycling and Solid Waste 
> Conducted third 2011 Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) collection event at CB South 

High School. 
> Attended regional (five-county) HHW planning meeting. 
> Processed paperwork on the EPA composting grant. 
> Working annual update of the Guide to Recycling in Bucks County. 
 



 11

 
TRANSPORTATION AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) 

 
TRANSPORTATION 
 
General Transportation Planning   
> Developing background information for Intersection Safety Study. 
> Conducted County Bike Plan Task Force Meeting. 
> Provided comments to consultant on draft county bike plan. 
> Attended Bensalem Greenway Project kickoff meeting. 
   
Public Transportation 
> Attended Lower Bucks Mini Transit Center Project Site Visit and Meeting. 
 
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 
> Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development 

reviews. 
> Attended Review/Design Meeting for St. Mary’s Medical Center in Middletown Township. 
  
Transportation Improvement Program 
> Provided TIP information to various individuals and agencies. 
> Attended LPN Training at PennDOT. 

 
Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC) 
> Attended Regional Transportation Committee Meeting. 

 
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS 
 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 
> Development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 
> Database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 
> Updating Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 
> Coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 
> Development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 
> Updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 
> Provided GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 
> Support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 
> Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 
> Technical support for MapJazz GIS Web Viewer. 
> Development of GIS datasets for inclusion in ESRI hosted Community Map. 
> Support of mobile GIS applications for County Consortium members. 
> Provided enhancements and support to EMA mobile field application. 
> Support of ArcGIS Mobile Data Inventory Collection solution to Warwick Twp. 
> Support in development of GIS Data Reviewer tool development and application. 
 
GIS Map Production 
> Completed County Road Map and sent out for printing. 
 
GIS Transportation 
> Development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 
  



 12

 



 
 

pg. 1 
 

 
 

NAVAL AIR STATION OFF-SITE HOUSING  
Shenandoah Woods Housing Area  

 
WARMINSTER TOWNSHIP 

 BUCKS COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 
 

CERTIFICATION OF REDEVELOPMENT AREA 
 

In accordance with 
PA Urban Redevelopment Law – P.L. 991, Section 1702 

JULY 2011 

 
 
 

Prepared by: 
 

Redevelopment Authority of the County of Bucks 
One North Wilson Avenue 

Bristol, PA  19007 
 
 

Prepared for: 
 

Bucks County Planning Commission 
& 

Warminister Township Planning Commission 



 
 

pg. 2 
 

 RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  
OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WARMINSTER 

CERTIFYING CERTAIN AREAS  
OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WARMINSTER  

CONTAINING LANDS OF THE SHENANDOAH WOODS HOUSING AREA 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the Township of Warminster is the official advisory 
agent to the Township of Warminster on matters pertaining to the general planning of land uses, 
redevelopment, and; 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the Township of Warminster has made a study of a 
certain properties in Township of Warminster, a description of which is attached hereto and  marked  
Exhibit  "A"; 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the Township of Warminster has examined the above-
described property and finds that it presents some or all of the follow characteristics which warrant its 
being considered a redevelopment area as defined by the Urban Redevelopment Law approved the 24th 
day of May 1945, P.L. 991: 
 

a. Unsafe, unsanitary, inadequate or overcrowded conditions of dwellings 
therein 

b. Inadequate planning of the area 
c. Excessive land coverage of the buildings thereon 
d. Lack of proper light, air and open space 
e. Defective design and arrangement of the buildings thereon 
f. Faulty street and lot layout 
g. Economically or socially undesirable land use 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Planning Commission of the Township of Warminster 
that: 

 
a. It is found and determined that the above-described area i s  a  

b l i g h t e d  area because of the existence of a combination of 
some or all o f  the conditions enumerated above. 

 
b. The above described area is hereby certified to the Redevelopment 

Authority of the County of Bucks as a Redevelopment Area as defined 
by the Urban Redevelopment   Law, supra. 

 
Planning Commission of the Township of Warminster 

 
___________________________________ 
     Chairman 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Resolution adopted by the Planning 
Commission of the Township of Warminster at its meeting held on the _________ day of  
_____________________ , 20____. 

 
___________________________________ 

Secretary 



 
 

pg. 3 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
OF THE COUNTY OF BUCKS CERTIFYING CERTAIN AREAS  

OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WARMINSTER CONTAINING LANDS OF THE 
SHENANDOAH WOODS HOUSING AREA 

 
WHEREAS, the  Planning  Commission of the County of Bucks is the official  
advisory agent  to the  Board of Commissioners of the County  of Bucks in matters  
pertaining to the general planning or  land  uses; and   

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the County of Bucks has made study of 
certain areas in the Township of Warminster, a description of which  is attached 
hereto and  marked  Exhibit  "A";  and 

 
WHEREAS, the  Planning Commission of the County of Bucks has examined the 
above described area and  finds that it presents some or all  of the following 
characteristics which warrant  its being  considered a Redevelopment Area as 
defined by the  Urban Redevelopment Law, approved the 24th  day of May,  1945,  
P.L.  991: 

 
a. Unsafe, unsanitary, inadequate or overcrowded conditions of 

dwellings therein 
b. Inadequate planning of the area 
c. Excessive land coverage of the buildings thereon 
d. Lack of proper light, air and open space 
e. Defective design and arrangement of the buildings thereon 
f. Faulty street and lot layout 
g. Economically or socially undesirable land use 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Planning Commission of the County of 
Bucks that: 
 

c. It is found and determined that the above-described area i s  a  
b l i g h t e d  area because of the existence of a combination of 
some or all o f  the conditions enumerated above. 

 
d. The above described area is hereby certified to the Redevelopment 

Authority of the County of Bucks as a Redevelopment Area as defined 
by the Urban Redevelopment   Law, supra. 

 
I, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Resolution adopted 
by the Planning Commission of the County of Bucks at its meeting held on the ____ day 
of _______________________, 20___. 

 
 



 
 

pg. 4 
 

Shenandoah Woods Housing Area 
Statement of Facts 

 
 

 Shenandoah Woods Naval Housing property is a residential community in the County of Bucks. 

 The property is located in Warminster Township. 

 Shenandoah Woods contains 51+/- acres.   

 The property is currently owned by the Department of Defense. 

 The land was most recently used as housing for the Willow Grove Naval Air Station military 
personnel 

 The areas closest two major highways are Interstate 95 and the Pennsylvania Turnpike providing 
access North and South, East and West respectively. 

 The Naval Air Warfare Center has been closed for several years.  

 The areas surrounding the property are generally residential in nature with mostly single family 
detached homes. 

 The property is served with public transportation. 

 The residential houses are mostly 1,162 square feet with 3 bedrooms and 2 ½ baths, smaller than 
average similar apartments in the area. 

 There are 199 residential units located at the Shenandoah Woods Housing Area.  

 The Navy removed all plumbing fixtures which renders the units uninhabitable. 

 The Shenandoah Woods Housing Area has only one ingress and egress roadway. 

 Inadequate planning and unsafe conditions exist at the Shenandoah Woods Housing Area. 

 The blighted conditions result in making the area economic and social liabilities which can become 
harmful to the social and economic well-being of the community. 

 The vacant lots provide little or no tax revenue to the community which places an undue burden on 
the municipal services. 

 Conditions exist that demonstrate that certain properties, individually and collective may contribute 
to blight and nuisance. 

 Roads are narrow and do not meet existing zoning regulations.   

 Narrow roads provide an impediment to emergency vehicle traffic providing a possible health and 
safety hazard for the occupants.  



 
 

pg. 5 
 

Introduction 
The Shenandoah Woods Housing Area has been used as an off-base housing area for the 

Naval Air Station, Joint Reserve Base of Willow Grove, PA. The area is a 51 ± acres property 

located in the Northeast corner of Warminster Township, Bucks County, PA. This property has 

40 buildings with housing quarters of 199 townhouse units; 6 community support facilities 

including recreation pavilion, mini-mart building, maintenance/equipment shed; and a series of 

paved roads and parking areas. Within the 51± acres there is also approximately a 26 ± acre 

section comprised of wooded area, open space, sport fields, service roads and natural buffer to 

surrounding residential areas.  

 

The ownership of the military off-site housing was transferred to NAS-JRB Willow Grove in 

1999 from the former Naval Air Warfare Center (NAWC) Warminster. These housing assets 

known as Shenandoah Woods Housing are located between six and eight miles away from NAS-

JRB Willow Grove.  

 

Contact Information: 

Shenandoah Woods Housing Director: 

John Floyd 

591 Skyhawk Drive (Office) 

Warminster, PA 18974 

215-773-2109 

 

Jim Rough 

Base Realignment Commission 

215-443-1762 

 

Overview 
The Shenandoah Woods Housing area currently encompasses 51± acres of land located at Orion 

Road and Bristol Road in Warminster, PA.  The property is boarded by West Bristol Road, 

Warminster Community Park, and a residential development.  Shenandoah Woods consists of 



 
 

pg. 6 
 

housing quarters totaling 199 townhouse units, which were constructed in 1974. The site is provided 

full utility service through Warminster Township. 

 
Zoning 
The Shenandoah Woods site falls within the R-2 Residence District under the Warminster 

Township Zoning Ordinance. Permitted uses under the R-2 zoning classification include 

single family detached dwellings not to exceed 2.2 dwelling units per gross acre of land being 

subdivided. Special exceptions and conditional uses provide additional uses which include single 

family-attached dwellings (townhouse) not to exceed six (6) dwelling units per acre calculated 

based on the portion of the lot designated for residential use. 



 
 

pg. 7 
 

Summary of Findings 
 
Under the Pennsylvania Urban Redevelopment Law a Redevelopment Area is defined as 

any area which a planning commission finds to have one or more of the following blighted 

conditions specified in Section 2 of the Act:   

 
a. Unsafe, unsanitary, inadequate or overcrowded conditions of 

dwellings therein 
 

b. Inadequate planning of the area 
 

c. Excessive land coverage of the buildings thereon 
 

d. Lack of proper light, air and open space 
 

e. Defective design and arrangement of the buildings thereon 
 

f. Faulty street and lot layout 
 

g. Economically or socially undesirable land use 
 

After a comprehensive evaluation of the conditions that exist at the Shenandoah 
Woods Housing Area it is evident that there exists conditions of blight and the area is 
in need of redevelopment. 
 
Specifically, the existing conditions of blight include: 
 

• Unsafe, unsanitary, inadequate or overcrowded conditions of dwellings 

therein 

 

The dwellings are unsafe, unsanitary and inadequate as all plumbing fixtures 

have been removed from the buildings rendering them uninhabitable. Toilets have 

been removed from the dwellings with foaming and blockage of sewer connections to 

prevent gases to enter the house.  Wood floors are buckling from apparent exposure to high 

humidity. Some dwellings are in a deteriorating condition such that it creates easy 

access for vermin. All appliances have been removed; refrigerant has been removed and 

recovered from all air conditioning units. 

 



 
 

pg. 8 
 

Overcrowding conditions exist at the Shenandoah Woods Housing Area.  

Density requirements for townhouses in an R-2 Residential District “shall have a 

maximum overall density of six (6) dwelling units per acre, which shall be calculated based 

on the portion of the lot designated for residential use.” The area designated for residential 

use is 25± acres which would allow for a maximum of 150 dwelling units, well below the 

existing 199 existing dwelling units. 

 

There exists only one ingress and egress roadway (Orion Drive) which is narrow and does 

not appear to meet current zoning regulations.  The narrow roadway creates an unsafe and 

hazardous condition for emergency vehicular traffic that may need to access the area and 

limits maneuverability. 

 

• Inadequate planning of the area 

 

The area has been improperly developed as evidenced by the narrow roadways, single 

ingress and egress and does not meet current requirements for density in an R-2 

Residential District. 

 

• Excessive land coverage of buildings thereon 

 

According to current zoning, the building coverage of a Mixed Use Development shall not 

exceed twenty (20) percent of the lot area. This property has housing quarters of 199 

townhouse units totaling 337,184 sq ft.  In addition, there are 6 community support 

facilities including recreation pavilion, mini-mart building, maintenance/equipment 

shed totaling 29,087 sq ft.    This represents approximately 33% of the 25± acre lot area. 

 

• Faulty street and lot layout 

 

As previously mentioned, there exists only one ingress and egress.  

Furthermore, roadways are narrow and do not appear to meet current zoning 

requirements. 

 



 
 

pg. 9 
 

• Economically or socially undesirable land use 

 

The vacant lots provide little or no tax revenue to the community which places an undue 

burden on municipal services. The blighted conditions result in making the area an 

economic and social liability which becomes harmful to the social and economic well-

being of the community.  This perception can result in the depreciation of property values 

and limits the potential for overall new investment to occur to the scale the community 

desires. 

 
Conclusion 
 
On the basis of the existing conditions documented in this report, there contains blighting 

conditions that warrant the area’s certification as an area in need of redevelopment.  The subject 

area is at an economic disadvantage because of the combination of blighting conditions that are 

beyond remedy without public assistance and, therefore, cannot reach full development potential. 

 

  



 
 

pg. 10 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PHOTO DOCUMENTATION 
 

CONDITIONS AS OF JULY 2011 
 

 
 
  



 
 

pg. 11 
 

 
 

Photo Documentation 
 
 
 
Conditions:  
 

- Unsafe, unsanitary, 
inadequate or overcrowded 
conditions of dwellings 
therein. 

- Inadequate planning of the area 
- Faulty street and lot layout  

 
Description: 
 
This is the only access road to the area.  
The road in the foreground is Orion 
Road and the road in the background is 
W. Bristol Road. 
 
 
 

 

 

 



 
 

pg. 12 
 

Photo Documentation 
 
 
Conditions: 
 

- Unsafe, unsanitary, 
inadequate or overcrowded 
conditions of dwellings 
therein. 

- Inadequate planning of the area 
- Faulty street and lot layout  

 
Description: 
 
The narrow roadway pictured is Orion 
Road.  This is the only access road to the 
area which creates an unsafe and 
hazardous condition for emergency 
personnel who may need to access the 
area. This also poses an unsafe condition 
for those that live in the area. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
  

 



 
 

pg. 13 
 

Photo Documentation  
 
 
 
Condition: 
 

- Inadequate planning of the area 
- Faulty street and lot layout 

 
Description: 
 
Single ingress and egress poses safety 
hazard 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

pg. 14 
 

Photo Documentation  
 
 
 
Condition: 
 
 

- Unsafe, unsanitary, 
inadequate or overcrowded 
conditions of dwellings 
therein 

 
Description: 
 
Deteriorating condition of dwelling; 
creates easy access for vermin.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  

 



 
 

pg. 15 
 

Photo Documentation  
 
 
 
Condition: 
 

- Inadequate planning of the area 
- Faulty street and lot layout 

 
 
 
Description: 
 
Narrow street; no sidewalks 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 



 
 

pg. 16 
 

Photo Documentation  
 
 
 
Condition: 
 

- Excessive land coverage of 
buildings thereon 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 



 
 

pg. 17 
 

Exhibit A 
Redevelopment Area Map 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Shenandoah Woods Housing Area 



 











































































































































 
 
 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

Wednesday, September 7, 2011 
2:00 P.M. 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2. Approval of Minutes for the Meeting of August 3, 2011 
 

3. Information Items 
- Chairman’s Report 
- Executive Director’s Report 
- Plumstead Township Comprehensive Plan 

Presentation by: David Sebastian 
 

4. Action Items 
- Act 247 Reviews 
 

5. Old Business 
 

6. New Business 
 
7. Public Comment and Press Questions 
 
8. Adjournment 

 
 

 
Please remember to contact us at 

215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 
 

AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 
 



 2

  



 3

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

Minutes of Meeting 
August 3, 2011 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; Darrin M. Hoffman; Ed Kisselback, Jr.; David 

Nyman, Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; David H. Platt; Walter Wydro 
 

STAFF PRESENT: Charles T. McIlhinney; Lynn T. Bush; Timothy A. Koehler; David P. 
Johnson; Margaret A. McKevitt; Dennis P. Livrone, Richard G. Brahler. 
 

GUESTS: Jeff Darwak, Deputy Director, Bucks County Redevelopment Authority 
Joseph Pizzo, Solicitor, Bucks County Redevelopment Authority 
Robert Severn, President, Ivyland Borough Council  
Frank Feinberg, Vice Chairman, Warminster Township Board of Supervisors 
Thomas E. Panzer, Member, Warminster Township Board of Supervisors 
Robert V. Tate, Jr., Manager, Warminster Township 
Michael J. Savona, Esq., Solicitor, Warminster Township 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Kisselback called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM with a moment of silence 

and the pledge of allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF JULY 6, 2011:  
 Upon motion of Mr. Pellegrino, seconded by Mrs. Pierce, the minutes of the July 6, 2011 

meeting were approved. Mr. Wydro abstained as he was not present. 
 

INFORMATION ITEMS: CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORTS 
 

 Chairman’s Report 
Mr. Kisselback deferred his time to Ms. Bush to provide the Executive Director’s Report. 
 

 Executive Director’s Report 
Ms. Bush reported that in addition to the information provided in her monthly report, she 
attended a meeting of the County Commissioner’s Association of Pennsylvania where 
discussion focused primarily on the State Budget and the lack of transportation funding for 
projects. 

 
ACTION ITEMS 
 

 Naval Air Station Off-site Housing/Shenandoah Woods Housing Area 
Certification of Redevelopment Area 
Mr. Kisselback introduced Mr. Jeff Darwak of the Bucks County Redevelopment Authority. 
Mr. Darwark provided background information on the Certification of Redevelopment plan 
for Shenandoah Woods Housing Area (see Attachment A).  
 
Mr. Kissleback polled the board members for questions or comments. 
 
Mr. Wydro asked how access to the site will be addressed and if any of the existing accessory 
structures will be retained in the redevelopment of the property. Mr. Panzer stated that all of 
the redevelopment issues will be addressed during the formal land development process. Mr. 
Panzer described the history of how the properties were divided in the overall development 



 4

plan established when the Naval Air Warfare Center closed. Mr. Nyman asked if the 
Warminster Township Planning Commission and Ivyland Borough support the plan. Mr. 
Severn stated that the Borough does. Mr. Tate stated the Warminster Township Planning 
Commission was meeting that evening to vote on their support of the plan. Mr. Hoffman 
asked for a clarification of how the redevelopment of the property works. 
 
Mr. Savona explained the steps necessary for the property to be redeveloped stating that the 
Bucks County Redevelopment Authority (RDA) will negotiate the sale of the property with its 
current owner, the U.S. Navy and if the approved, the RDA will take title of the property. 
Discussion focused on the ownership, redevelopment, and future sale of the property. Mr. 
Hoffman asked if low-income housing will developed on the property. Mr. Savona stated that 
there is no support for this type of housing at this point. 
 
Mr. Kisselback polled members of the public for comment. 
 
On motion of Mr. Nyman, seconded by Mr. Pellegrino, the board unanimously approved a 
resolution Certifying Certain Areas of the Township of Warminster Containing Lands of the 
Shenandoah Woods Housing Area to be a Redevelopment Area (Attachment B), subject to 
Warminster Township Planning Commission approval. 

 
 Act 247 Reviews 

The reviews of August 3, 2011, were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. 
On motion of Mr. Wydro, seconded by Mrs. Pierce, the board approved the August 3, 2011 Act 
247 reviews. Mr. Platt abstained from vote on BCPC#21-11-2 in Lower Southampton Township. 

 
NEW BUSINESS: Mr. Hoffman asked Ms. Bush if arrangements could be made to have a 

representative from the State provide an update on proposed legislation to privatize the sale of 
liquor in Pennsylvania. Ms. Bush stated she would follow-up on Mr. Hoffman’s suggestion. 

 
ADJOURNMENT:  Upon the motion of Mr. Nyman, seconded by Mrs. Pierce, the meeting adjourned at 

2:40 P.M. 
 

 
Submitted by, 
 

       Margie McKevitt 
Staff Secretary 

 
  



 5

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Executive Director’s Report 

August 2011 
 
 
Grange Fair -  
 
Pennsylvania City-County Directors' Meeting -  
 
Bucks County Bridges –  
 
Economic Development Council –  
 
Bucks County Conservation District –  
 
Municipal Meetings – (Solebury-Lumberville or Tinicum) 
  



 6

 
 
 

 
 



 7

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 
August 2011 

 
PLANNING SERVICES 

 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 

Municipal Planning Services 
 

> Meeting Attendance – Attended the regular planning commission meetings of Buckingham 
Township, Perkasie Borough, and the Quakertown Area Planning Committee.  

> Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan – Met with Borough officials to discuss the 
comprehensive plan process, priority issues, and community education and involvement. Started to 
create a photo library and to develop background information and maps for the community.  

> New Hope Borough Comprehensive Plan – Prepared copies of the adopted comprehensive 
plan documents and summary planning brochure for the community.  

> Plumstead Township Comprehensive Plan – The plan was adopted at a public hearing at the 
Board of Supervisors’ August work session.  

> Hulmeville Borough Zoning Ordinance – Met with Borough Council to continue review of 
the revisions to the zoning ordinance that resulted from Council’s review.  

> Wrightstown Township Open Space Plan – Completed the final draft of the open space plan 
and submitted it to the Open Space Review Board for review. 

> Perkasie Borough Zoning Ordinance Update—Received comments on the draft zoning 
ordinance from planning commission members. 

 
Bucks County Comprehensive Plan 
> Completed review and revisions to the second draft of the Community Facilities and 

Services, Energy Conservation and Sustainability, Stormwater Management, Wastewater 
Facilities, and Housing sections.  

> Continued revising the draft demographics element (with comparison to recently obtained 
2010 Census information) of the Measurements of Growth section. 

> Continued preparing revisions to revised first draft of Water Resources and Hazard 
Mitigation sections. 

> Continued preparing narrative for Sustainability and Smart Growth sections.  
> Continued preparing comprehensive plan indicators and implementation bench marks. 
> Continued preparing the Plan Introduction including the public participation process. 
> Completed a discussion of the plan’s foundations, including Sustainable Development, 

Stewardship, and the history of planning at the BCPC. 
> Continued evaluating the process of preparing a final complete plan along with the steps 

needed to prepare a digital plan with hyperlinks. Prepared hyperlinks for the Historic and 
Scenic Resources sections of the plan. 

> Began preparing final drafts of completed sections. 
 

Planning Information and Agency Coordination 
> Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, 

development proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations, floodplain, 
and community background (or profiles). 

> Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 



 8

> Attended TreeVitalize Advisory Committee Meeting to discuss reshaping the future of the 
committee and update the status of the Plant One Million (P1M) campaign. 

> Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 
> Provided information to the general public at the Middletown Grange fair.  
> Began evaluating potential projects that could use Community Development Block Grant and 

Coastal Zone Management Program funding. 
> Began assessing potential actions that could address the results of the Illegal Dumping survey 

that was recently conducting in Bucks County by Keep Pennsylvania Beautiful (a nonprofit 
organization). 
 

Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 
> 8 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 
> 1 Sketch Plans 
> 6 Municipals 
> 2 Sewage Facility Planning Module 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 
Bucks County Comprehensive Plan   
> Working on introductory statements for the comprehensive plan principles. 
> Revising the public outreach section. 
> Prepared introduction to the indicators section.  Established indicators and benchmarks for 

comprehensive plan components and prepared draft outline document.  
> Began formulating supportive narrative and analysis for each category of indicators. 
> Revised draft stormwater section. Working on water and hazard mitigation sections. 
 
Bucks Employees Green Initiative (BEGIN) Committee 
> Met with EPA food composting grant project partners.  Began to establish timeline, potential 

dates and format of educational workshops and logistics.   
> Held quarterly BEGIN committee meeting. 
 
Alternative Energy Planning  
> Discussed with other counties, PECO, and the City of Philadelphia representatives, the 

opportunities for the region and how the Rooftop Solar Challenge to Induce Market 
Transformation grant would be carried out.  

 
Stormwater and Flood Management Planning 
> Worked with DEP to revise the exemption criteria in the Neshaminy Watershed Act 167 

Stormwater Management Plan and informed all watershed municipalities.  
> Planning a municipal implementation workshop to explain to watershed municipalities how 

to implement new criteria and the plan.  
> Assisting with Pennypack Creek Act 167 Plan revisions in coordination with Montgomery 

and Philadelphia Counties.  Researching impervious surface averages in Pennypack to 
determine exemption criteria.  

> Researching information and developing resources to assist municipalities with the revised 
NPDES MS4 permit.    

 
Coastal Zone Planning 
> Looking at prospective projects for upcoming CZM grant application.  
 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Plan 



 9

> Continued work on Executive Summary version of the plan. 
> Prepared final grant submission package. 
> Provided information to Greenspace Overhaul Alliance of Levittown (GOAL) for their 

preparation of a grant application. 
> Attended Advisory Committee meeting of Philadelphia Citywide Trails Master Plan. 
 
Recycling and Solid Waste 
> Conducted the last two 2011 Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) collection events at 

Quakertown Community High School and Bucks County Technical High School. 
> Attended regional (five-county) HHW planning meeting in Philadelphia to tour an electronic 

recycler. 
> Started initial steps in implementation of the EPA food composting grant. 
> Stakeholder meeting 
> Follow-up vendor contact 
> Working on annual update of the Guide to Recycling in Bucks County. 
> Attended the press event announcing the results of the Keep Pennsylvania Beautiful “Illegal 

Dump Survey- 2011 Final Report – Bucks County”. 
> Working on developing an action plan to address the issues raised in the report. 

 
TRANSPORTATION & GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM 

 
General Transportation Planning   
> Continued developing background information for Intersection Safety Study. 
> Met with consultant regarding draft county bike plan. 
> Developed Bridge Sufficiency Listing. 
> Composed Bridge Bill Request letter for legislative officials. 
> Reviewed I-95 Road Safety Audit Report and provided comments to DVRPC. 

   
Public Transportation 
> Attended TMA Bucks Board Meeting. 
> Attended meeting with Bucks County Transport to discuss route mapping. 

 
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 
> Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land 

development reviews. 
> Developed cost estimate and scope of services for Perkasie Transit Oriented Design 

Project. 
  

Transportation Improvement Program 
> Provided TIP information to various individuals and agencies.  

 
Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC)  
> Attended Regional Safety Task Force Meeting. 
> Processed FY 2012 Supportive Regional Highway Planning Contracts. 
> Processed FY 2012 Transit Support Program Contracts. 
 
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS (GIS) 
> Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 



 10

> Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police 
response zones. 

> Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 
> Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 
> Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 
> Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 
> Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of 

Assessment. 
> Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 
> Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 
> Continued technical support for MapJazz GIS Web Viewer. 
> Continued development of GIS datasets for inclusion in ESRI hosted Community 

Map. 
> Continued support of mobile GIS applications for County Consortium members. 
> Continued enhancements and support to EMA mobile field application. 
> Continued support of ArcGIS Mobile Data Inventory Collection solution to Warwick 

Twp. 
> Continued support in development of GIS Data Reviewer tool development and 

application. 
> Staff met with the County GIS Committee to provide project updates. 
> Staff attended Middletown Grange Fair. 
> Provided GIS support to County Community Corrections Department. 
 
GIS Map Production 
> Continued work on the Community Maps Project. 
> Produced map of County House Arrestees. 
 
GIS Transportation 
> Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 
 



















































































































































 
 
 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

Wednesday, October 5, 2011 
2:00 P.M. 

 
Robert H. Grunmeier Room 

1260 Almshouse Road 
Doylestown, PA 18901 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2. Approval of Minutes for the Meeting of September 7, 2011 
 

3. Information Items 
- Chairman’s Report 
- Executive Director’s Report 
- County Comprehensive Plan 

 
4. Action Items 

- Act 247 Reviews 
 

5. Old Business 
 

6. New Business 
 
7. Public Comment and Press Questions 
 
8. Adjournment 

 
 

 
Please remember to contact us at 

215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 
 

AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 
 



 2 

  



 3 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

Minutes of Meeting 
September 7, 2011 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph A. Cullen, Jr.; Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; Darrin M. Hoffman; 

Ed Kisselback, Jr.; David R. Nyman; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; 
David H. Platt; Walter Wydro 
 

STAFF PRESENT: Arthur F. Breitinger; Donna W. Byers; David P. Johnson; Timothy A. 
Koehler; Charles T. McIlhinney; Margaret A. McKevitt; David A. 
Sebastian; Maureen Wheatley 

  
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Kisselback called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM with a moment of silence 

and the pledge of allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF AUGUST 3, 2011:  
 Upon motion of Mr. Nyman, seconded by Ms. Pierce, with the vote being 8-1 the minutes of the 

August 3, 2011 meeting were approved. Mr. Cullen abstained as he was not present. 
 

INFORMATION ITEMS: CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORTS 
 
 Chairman’s Report 

There was no chairman’s report. Mr. Kisselback deferred his time to Mr. Koehler to provide the 
Executive Director’s Report in Ms. Bush’s absence. 
 

 Executive Director’s Report 
The Executive Director’s Report was submitted to the board prior to the meeting. 
 
Mr. Koehler reported on the BCPC display presented at the Middletown Grange Fair. The display 
boards were set up at the meeting for viewing. 
 
The board was provided with copies of the Bucks County 2011 Official Road Map. Mr. Koehler 
said the map was handed out to residents at the Grange Fair and any questions concerning the 
map may be directed to Mr. Johnson.  
 
Mr. Kisselback requested an update on the Bucks County Comprehensive Plan. Mr. Koehler 
reported that a draft comprehensive plan narrative will be given to the board for their review at 
the October meeting. Mr. Nyman asked if some of the document will be available for review 
prior to the meeting. Mr. Koehler responded some narratives may be submitted early, but 
suggested the document may be more comprehensible submitted in its entirety rather than pieces. 
Mr. Kisselback asked whether the narrative could be emailed to the board prior to the meeting. 
Mr. Koehler responded that it was his understanding a hard copy and digital version of the 
narrative would be available at the time of the October meeting, but he will discuss other options 
with Ms. Bush upon her return to the office on September 26th. 

 
 Plumstead Township Comprehensive Plan 

Mr. Sebastain provided a PowerPoint presentation on the Plumstead Township Comprehensive 
Plan Update that was adopted by the Plumstead Township Board of Supervisors on August 16, 
2011. A hard copy of the plan was presented to the board. Mr. Sebastian highlighted the plan’s 



 4 

purpose, community goals, guiding principles, characteristics of smart growth, and the plan 
chapters that fulfill the requirements of the PA Municipalities Code. Mr. Sebastian announced 
that adjacent municipalities are invited to a Roundtable Meeting on regional planning issues 
scheduled the end of September. 
 
Mr. Kisselback asked what is Plumstead Township’s size and population. Mr. Sebastian replied 
the current population is 12,000 and the acreage size is 17,000 or approximately 26-square-miles. 
Mr. Nyman asked when the plan was last updated to which Mr. Sebastian responded 1992. Mr. 
Wydro commended Mr. Sebastian on a job well done.  
 
Mr. Hoffman asked if the Bucks County Comprehensive Plan will follow the same format as 
Plumstead Township’s plan. Mr. Koehler replied that the Bucks County plan will be a hybrid. 
Discussion followed on the formatting of the hard copy and digital versions of the comprehensive 
plan. 

 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
 Act 247 Reviews 

The reviews of September 7, 2011 were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. 
On motion of Mr. Wydro, seconded by Mr. Pellegrino, the board approved the September 7, 
2011 Act 247 reviews. There were no abstentions. 

 
OLD BUSINESS: There was no old business.  
 
NEW BUSINESS: There was no new business. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT AND PRESS QUESTIONS: There were no public comments or press questions. 

 
ADJOURNMENT:  Upon the motion of Mr. Pellegrino, seconded by Mr. Platt, the meeting adjourned at 

2:40 PM. 
 

 
Submitted by, 
 

       Donna W. Byers 
Staff Secretary 

 
  



 5 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

Executive Director’s Report 
September 2011 

 
Philadelphia Metro Caucus – On September 16, 2011, at the Delaware Valley Regional 
Planning Commission, Commissioner Robert Loughery provided testimony on behalf of the 
Caucus to the Pennsylvania State Transportation Commission. The testimony highlighted the 
following three transportation priorities of regional importance: 
 

1. INTERSTATE 95: I-95 is the primary north-south commercial and commuter corridor 
in the region and the second-most-used highway in the Commonwealth. In addition to 
modernization and repairs along the corridor, the completion of the I-95 and 
Pennsylvania Turnpike interchange in Bucks County and improvements to the I-476 and 
I-95 interchange in Delaware County should be top infrastructure priorities.  

 
2. PASSENGER RAIL: More than 300 million passenger trips are taken annually on 

SEPTA, and the density of Southeastern Pennsylvania’s population makes public 
transportation a necessity for efficient mobility. Investment must be made in our 
passenger rail system to meet the region’s 21st-century needs.  This includes upgrading 
fare collection systems, completion of deferred maintenance on SEPTA’s passenger rail 
network, and expansion of passenger rail capacity and service.  

 
3. LOCALLY OWNED BRIDGES: Pennsylvania’s dubious distinction as first in the 

nation in structurally deficient bridges is widely cited. While efforts have been made to 
improve the condition of many state-owned bridges, the Commonwealth has provided 
limited resources toward the repair and reconstruction of bridges owned by 
Pennsylvania’s counties and municipalities. Within the five counties, 39 percent of the 
803 locally-owned bridges are classified as structurally deficient.  

 
Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission – At its 25th Annual Board Retreat DVRPC 
recognized the region’s best in transportation, environment, land use, and economic 
development. Commissioner Diane Marseglia accepted the environmental award on behalf of the 
Metro Caucus’ EnergyWorks program which Bucks County is leading the surrounding counties 
in residential program participation and the total number of certified EnergyWorks contractors. 
There are approximately 138 homes enrolled in the program and 72 contractors to date. 
 
Other awards were given to: 
 
Transportation Program of the Year South Street Bridge, Philadelphia, PA 
Economic Development Program of the Year Sustainable Business Network of Greater Phila 
Land Use Program of the Year Franklin Commons, Phoenixville, PA 
 
Also, EnergyWorks is sponsoring a Free Energy Awareness Month Community Workshop on 
October 15, 2011, at the Doylestown Free Library. Certified experts will provide tips on how to 
improve energy efficiency in your home, reduce your carbon footprint, and save money on utility 
bills. Information will be provided on the value of a home energy assessment and how to obtain 
local energy efficiency resources and available tax credits and rebates. 



 6 



 7 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

Staff Report 
September 2011 

 
PLANNING SERVICES 

 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 

Municipal Planning Services 
 Meeting Attendance – Attended the regular planning commission meetings of Buckingham 

Township and Sellersville Borough. 
 Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan – Continued research and evaluation of U.S. Census 

block data, demographic information, and other land use data needed to develop the plan. Began 
preparation of chapters related to demographic and development trends, and goals and objectives 
based on priority issues identified at the initial meeting with officials. Created a base map and draft 
land use map for review by local officials.  

 Plumstead Township Comprehensive Plan – Presented the highlights of the plan to the 
BCPC Board at their September meeting. The plan was previously adopted by the Township 
in August.  

 Hulmeville Borough Zoning Ordinance – Began preparation of final draft of the zoning 
ordinance. 

 Wrightstown Township Open Space Plan – The plan was adopted at the September 19th 
Board of Supervisors’ meeting. 

 Perkasie Borough Zoning Ordinance Update – Received comments on the draft zoning 
ordinance from planning commission members. 

 
Bucks County Comprehensive Plan 
 Completed review and revisions to the second draft of the Water Supply and Existing Land 

Use sections.  
 Completed revisions to and began 3rd draft review of the demographics element (with 

comparison to recently obtained 2010 Census information) of the Measurements of Growth 
section. 

 Continued preparing revisions to revised first draft of Water Resources and Hazard 
Mitigation sections. 

 Completed 3rd draft revisions to the Sustainability and Smart Growth, Housing, 
Transportation, and Visions/Principles sections.  

 Completed Plan Introduction including the public participation process. 
 Continued evaluating the process of preparing a final complete plan along with the steps 

needed to prepare a digital plan with hyperlinks. Prepared hyperlinks for the Agricultural 
Resources section of the plan. 

 Prepared draft narrative for the Plan Implementation chapter. 
 Continued preparing final drafts of completed sections. 

 
Planning Information and Agency Coordination 
 Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, 

development proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations, floodplain, 
and community background (or profiles). 



 8 

 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 
 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 
 Continued evaluating potential projects that could use Community Development Block Grant 

and Coastal Zone Management Program funding. 
 Continued assessing potential actions that could address the results of the Illegal Dumping 

survey that was recently conducting in Bucks County by Keep Pennsylvania Beautiful (a 
nonprofit organization). 

 Reviewed and commented on draft DVRPC regional housing plan. 
 Attended American Fact Finding training provided by the U.S Census Bureau to update staff 

on data usage methods.  
 Obtained Minor Civil Division block-level data for 2000 and 2010, and began block-level 

comparison of data for Bucks County municipalities that have unexplained significant 
population and/or housing changes.  
 

Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 
 6 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 
 0 Sketch Plans 
 3 Municipals 
 1 Sewage Facility Planning Module 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 

Bucks County Comprehensive Plan   
 Completed Water Supply section of the draft document. 
 Working on Hazard Mitigation section. 

 
Bucks Employees Green Initiative (BEGIN) Committee 
 Met with EPA food composting grant project partners.  Discussed potential presentations and 

educational outreach programs to offer. Begin to formulate distribution event/s and logistics.   
 
Alternative Energy Planning  
 Discussed with other counties, PECO, and the City of Philadelphia representatives, ongoing 

progress of grant application for Rooftop Solar Challenge to Induce Market Transformation, 
which is to be submitted to the DOE in September. 

 
Stormwater and Flood Management Planning 
 Hosted a Municipal Implementation Workshop (MIW) on September 22, 2010 at BCPC. 

Over 20 attendees heard how to implement new criteria into the plan and how to continue to 
address stormwater on small projects.   

 Assisting with Pennypack Creek Act 167 Plan revisions in coordination with Montgomery 
and Philadelphia Counties.  Attempted to find impervious surface averages in Pennypack to 
determine exemption criteria.  

 Researching information and developing resources to assist municipalities with the revised 
NPDES MS4 permit.    

 Attended Low Impact Development Conference on September 27, 2010 in Philadelphia. 
 
Coastal Zone Planning 
 Began researching prospective projects for upcoming CZM grant application cycle.   



 9 

 Contacted various county and nonprofit agencies regarding the potential to partner on two 
proposed projects. 

 Conducted site visits of areas that need riparian buffer restoration.  
 Discussed implementing water monitoring program on Otter, Mill, Black Ditch and Queen 

Anne Creeks. The training would be conducted by nonprofit group and monitoring would be 
conducted by paid intern.   

 Began compiling list of projects completed in proposed project areas needing restoration and 
educational campaigns.   

 Conducted brief site visits of proposed project areas located in the coastal zone area. 
 Began contacting individual municipalities regarding innovative restoration, SWM, green 

infrastructure, wetland and/or meadow restoration and/or creation projects.  
 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Plan 
 Continued work on Executive Summary version of the plan. 
 Submitted final grant package. 
 Began outreach to potential partners, and began preparing narrative for CZM grant 

application for a multi-use trail feasibility study for the Mill (Otter) – Queen Anne Creek 
Greenway identified in the Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Plan. 

 
Hazard Mitigation Planning 
 Met with consultant staff from Michael Baker, Inc. to discuss FEMA review comments on 

the Bucks County Hazard Mitigation Plan — 2011 currently pending approval by FEMA. 
 Participated in conference call between FEMA, Michael Baker, and BCPC staff regarding 

how to address FEMA’s comments. FEMA was satisfied with the responses to their 
concerns. 

 
Recycling and Solid Waste 
 Worked on an electronic recycling RFP for the 5 County HHW program that should be a 

cost-savings. 
 Attended regional (five-county) HHW planning meeting in Philadelphia to tour a third 

electronic recycler. 
 Started initial steps in implementation of the EPA food composting grant. 

1. Stakeholder meeting 
2. Follow-up vendor contact 

 Working on developing a plan to address the illegal dumping issues raised in the Keep 
America Beautiful survey report. 
 

TRANSPORTATION & GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM 

 

TRANSPORTATION 
 

General Transportation Planning 
 Continued developing background information for Intersection Safety Study. 
 Conducted Bicycle Task Force Meeting. 
 Revised Transportation Section of County Comprehensive Plan. 
 Attended Census Training Session for American Community Survey Program. 
 Attended U.S. 202 Section 700 Task Force Meeting. 
 
Public Transportation 
 Attended SEPTA City/County Meeting. 



 10 

 Participated in New Freedoms Program Conference Call. 
 Attended meeting with Bucks County Transport to discuss route mapping. 
 
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 
 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development 

reviews. 
  
Transportation Improvement Program 
 Provided TIP information to various individuals and agencies.  
 Submitted Project Abstract for Metropolitan Caucus for State Transportation Commission 

hearing. 
 

Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC)  
 Attended Regional Transportation Committee Meeting. 
 Attended Transportation Operations Task Force Meeting. 
 Reviewed Transportation Community Development Initiative Program applications for six 

projects. 
 Submitted FY 2013 Core Work Programs for Supportive Highway Regional Planning 

Program and Transit Support Program. 
 

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS (GIS) 
 

Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 
 Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 
 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 
 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 
 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 
 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 
 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 
 Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 
 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 
 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 
 Continued technical support for MapJazz GIS Web Viewer. 
 Continued development of GIS datasets for inclusion in ESRI hosted Community Map. 
 Continued support of mobile GIS applications for County Consortium members. 
 Continued enhancements and support to EMA mobile field application. 
 Continued support in development of GIS Data Reviewer tool development and application. 
 Staff met with the County IT staff to discuss GIS server needs and upgrades. 
 Continued GIS support to County Community Corrections Department. 
 Staff attended ESRI GIS seminar in Philadelphia. 
 Staff attended two-day GIS training in-house on web mapping development. 
 
GIS Map Production 
 Continued work on the Community Maps Project. 
 
GIS Transportation 
 Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 
 Staff attended Information Resources Exchange Group Meeting at PADOT. 
 Staff attended Region-wide GIS Transportation Seminar at ESRI offices 
 







































































































































































































 
BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

MEETING 
 

Wednesday, December 7, 2011 
2:00 P.M. 

 
Robert H. Grunmeier Room 

1260 Almshouse Road 
Doylestown, PA 18901 

 
 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
2. Approval of Minutes for Meetings of November 2 and 17, 2011 

 
3. Information Items 

- Chairman’s Report 
- Executive Director’s Report 
- Bucks County Comprehensive Plan Approval Process Update 
- Year-End Report and Goals for 2012 

 
4. Action Items 

- Act 247 Reviews 
 
5. Old Business 

- Report from Nominating Committee/Election of Officers 
 

6. New Business 
 
7. Public Comment and Press Questions 
 
8. Adjournment 

 
 

 
Please remember to contact us at 

215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 
 

AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING  



 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

Minutes of Meeting 
November 2, 2011 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph A. Cullen, Jr.; Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; Darrin M. Hoffman; 

Ed Kisselback, Jr.; David R. Nyman; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. 
Pierce; David H. Platt; Walter Wydro 
 

STAFF PRESENT: Charles T. McIlhinney; Lynn T. Bush; Timothy A. Koehler; David P. 
Johnson; Donna W. Byers; Margaret A. McKevitt; Arthur F. Breitinger; 
Dennis P. Livrone; David A. Sebastian; Michael A. Roedig; Alice J. 
Lambert 
 

GUESTS: Judy Stern Goldstein – Boucher & James, Inc. 
David Ford – Bucks County Opportunity Council 
Stacey Mulholland – Congressman Michael Fitzpatrick 
Stephanie Mason – Doylestown Township 
Marvin Woodall, Linda Cacossa, and Susan Myerov – Heritage Conservancy 
Judy Norkin, and Scott and Jeanne Scanlon Boichajlik – Newtown Township 
Linda McNeill and Damen Aherne – Tinicum Township 
Ray Rieder – Warrington Township 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Kisselback called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM with a moment of 

silence and the pledge of allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF OCTOBER 5, 2011:  
 Upon motion of Mr. Wydro, seconded by Ms. Pierce, with the vote being 7-2 the minutes of 

the October 5, 2011 meeting were approved. Mr. Platt and Mr. Cullen abstained as they were 
not present. 
 

INFORMATION ITEMS: CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORTS 
 
 Chairman’s Report 

Mr. Kisselback welcomed the guests to the meeting and deferred his time to discussion on 
the Bucks County Comprehensive Plan.  
 

 Executive Director’s Report 
The Executive Director’s Report was submitted to the board prior to the meeting. 
 
Ms. Bush announced that at today’s Commissioners meeting, the Commissioners presented 
the BCPC with a Proclamation for 60 years of service to the residents of Bucks County. Mr. 
Kisselback, Mr. Nyman, Mr. Pellegrino and Mr. Wydro were present at the meeting. Mr. 
Kisselback said he was grateful and thankful for this acknowledgement. 
 
The board recognized Planner, Art Breitinger for 32 years of service to the Bucks County 
Planning Commission. Mr. Breitinger is retiring on December 2nd. 
 



 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
 Act 247 Reviews 

The reviews of November 2, 2011 were mailed to the board for their review prior to the 
meeting. On motion of Mr. Cullen, seconded by Mr. Pellegrino, the board approved the 
November 2, 2011 Act 247 reviews. There were no abstentions. 
 

PUBLIC MEETING: 2011 BUCKS COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DRAFT 
 
 Procedure for Review/Recommendation 

Ms. Bush said having met with the solicitor and following proper procedure, the Bucks 
County Comprehensive Plan (BCCP) was made available to Bucks County municipalities as 
well as neighboring counties and municipalities in adequate time to review and proceed with 
two advertised public meetings. The Plan is available for review/comment on the Bucks 
County website.  
 

 Overview of the Plan 
Ms. Bush provided an overview of the BCCP. Mr. Kisselback polled the board for questions 
and opened the meeting for public comment. 
 

 Public Comment 
 Judy Norkin: 15 year resident of Newtown Township 
 

1. Question/Comment: Ms. Norkin commented on possible environmental 
repercussions to Bucks County if the Delaware River Basin Commission lifts the 
moratorium on hydraulic Marcellus shale fracking (means of natural gas extraction 
in natural gas well drilling). Will the BCCP address the potential impacts on water 
supply and wastewater contamination if the ban is lifted?  
 
Response: Mr. Koehler responded that water quality is addressed under the Natural 
Resources Protection section of the BCCP. While natural gas drilling leases do exist 
in areas such as Nockamixon Township, the rock formations in these areas do not 
provide for the same formations (Marcellus shale) as in the upper part of the state 
and that there is no drilling going on here. 
 
Mr. Livrone responded that municipalities regulate water supply and wastewater, 
and municipal water suppliers are continually monitoring water quality and levels. 
The BCCP does not specifically address potential impacts of the fracking process as 
the role of the county on this issue is very indirect.  
 
Mr. Cullen offered that the Marcellus Shale Advisory Commission has summary 
findings on state legislation on this issue.  
 
Ms. Bush added that the Delaware River Basin Commission (DRBC) protects water 
resources. The Marcellus shale fracking is beyond the control of county 
government. Gas companies may want local zoning pre-empted but this would be a 
concern across the state. 

 



 

2. Question/Comment: Ms. Norkin questioned whether the Newtown Area Joint 
Zoning Council that comprises Newtown, Upper Makefield, and Wrightstown 
townships benefits the residents of these municipalities in the terms of commercial 
development. Ms. Norkin noted in particular a plan proposed for a McDonald’s 
restaurant at the Village at Newtown Shopping Center that would replace a medical 
office building near the intersection of Durham and Eagle roads. Ms. Norkin said 
the effect of this commercial development may impact pedestrian and cyclist safety 
due to increased traffic congestion. 
 
Response: Mr. Wydro, Chairman of the Newtown Area Joint Planning 
Commission, requested Ms. Norkin provide her name and address so that he can 
provide her with information on the Jointure and commercial development. 

 
3. Question/Comment: Ms. Norkin asked how Adaptive Reuse will look in Newtown 

Township when the municipality is already built-up to almost maximum capacity – 
citing the McDonalds proposal raised in Question/Comment 2. Does Adaptive 
Reuse open the possibility to any use? Ms. Norkin said this could impact 
confidence of homeowners within or close to these areas. 
 
Response: Mr. Kisselback responded that zoning is governed by the Municipalities 
Planning Code and decided at the local level. When municipal ordinances are 
written they take into consideration what that municipality wants to include. This 
question/concern should be addressed to the Board of Supervisors in her 
municipality.  

 
Mr. Wydro said commercial and industrial development is unique to each 
community. The commercial zones are all individualized in Newtown, Upper 
Makefield and Wrightstown townships. Mr. Wydro said he will field this question 
to Ms. Norkin when she provides her contact information and encouraged her 
continued participation. 
 
Mr. Hoffman added that the Bucks County Planning Commission’s (BCPC) role is 
not regulatory and that while the BCPC reviews proposed projects and provides 
comment on statutory issues and how it compares overall with the county’s plan 
and view, municipalities are not required to follow our recommendations and do not 
always follow them. Mr. Hoffman said he hopes the updated BCCP will set a tone. 

 
 Linda McNeil: Manager for Tinicum Township 

Damen Aherne: Chairperson, Planning Commission for Tinicum Township  
 
4. Question/Comment: Ms. McNeil stated municipalities rely on what the BCCP 

states, specifically for the Section 106 process (funding for Pennsylvania 
Transportation and Heritage projects). Tinicum Township is updating its municipal 
comprehensive plan to be consistent with the county plan. Ms. McNeil raised the 
following: 

 
Ms. McNeil stated that she believes the 1999 Natural Areas mapping showed more 
consistencies with prime natural resources to be protected and the new map appears 
to be more toward woodland areas, excluding agricultural areas. The Tohickon 



 

Creek re-designation is still pending and would like to see it noted as such until 
finalized (page 56). 

 
Response: Ms. Bush responded that the Natural Areas Inventory process was 
changed and that the map shows conservation landscapes as opposed to individual 
sites. Mr. Aherne said the Tohickon Corridor goes to the main stem and believes the 
new map may be missing a stretch. Ms. Bush said this will be double-checked. Mr. 
Koehler added that the current Plan has 2011 Natural Areas maps and suggested 
that the two maps could be merged to show the 1999 areas. 

 
5. Question/Comment: Ms. McNeil requested the BCCP not make specific 

references to development proposals in Tinicum Township (i.e. 700 additional 
residential units in the western portion of Tinicum Township) on page 29, because 
this is speculative and may change. 

 
6. Question/Comment: Ms. McNeil said she attended a meeting at Heritage 

Conservancy and learned that there are historic bridges in the county that are not 
covered bridges and suggested this may be reflected on page 204 under Historic 
and Covered Bridges. 

 
Mr. Aherne added that it is less expensive to rehabilitate bridges than replace them 
and that these bridges have historical attributes. He would like to see language in 
the BCCP that can be used in connection with Section 106 reviews. 

 
Response:  Ms. Bush responded that the BCPC will look at the Lichtenstein Report 
on historic bridges and make sure the language works. 
 

 Judy Stern Goldstein: Boucher & James, Inc. 
 

7. Question/Comment: Ms. Goldstein commented on the two Natural Areas 
Inventories and the map provided, noting that people look at the mapping more than 
the text. Ms. Goldstein believes the Quakertown Swamp area is not referenced and 
is missing from the current map. Her suggestion is to include the Quakertown 
Swamp area in the natural areas inventory mapping. BCPC staff will review this. 
 

Discussion: Mr. Hoffman polled the public on the current digital draft BCCP on the county’s 
website for comment and asked any further comments on the digital version be made to Mr. 
Koehler. Ms. Goldstein said the Plan made available on the county’s website is easy to 
navigate and use, particularly with the bookmarks and panels pages. Mr. Koehler said the 
final plan will have user-friendly hyperlinks included for further information. Ms. Goldstein 
said the hyperlinks will be very useful. Mr. Aherne also noted the ease of navigating through 
the digital Plan and commended the BCPC on their work product and foresight. Mr. Aherne 
submitted that digitization of the maps would suggest detail is more significant, particularly 
with the Tohickon Corridor as mentioned in Question/Comment #4. 

 
Mr. Nyman pointed out that an Executive Summary of the BCCP is available. He also 
mentioned that a planning monitoring process will be in place for continual updating and will 
lessen the gap between comprehensive plan updates. 
 



 

Mr. Wydro credited the staff for the document stating it is a great undertaking and will be 
something to be noted in the future. 
 
Mr. McIlhinney announced the next Public Meeting on the BCCP will be held on November 
17th at 7:00 PM in the Robert H. “Barney” Grunmeier Meeting Room of the Bucks County 
Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Hoffman asked what the process will be to incorporate comments into the Plan. Ms. 
Bush said the suggestions and comments today will be reviewed along with email comments 
(available on county website) and written up between now and the November 17th Public 
Meeting. 
 
Mr. McIlhinney said the possible revisions noted today do not constitute substantial revisions 
and that changes can be made to the draft without any need for re-advertising. 
 
Mr. Kisselback closed the Public Meeting and requested attendees sign the sign-in sheet 
before leaving the meeting. 

 
OLD BUSINESS: There was no old business.  
 
NEW BUSINESS: Mr. Kisselback said the Nominating Committee from last year would 

recommence with Mr. Goodnoe, Mr. Platt, and Mr. Wydro. 
 
PRESS QUESTIONS: There were no press questions. 

 
ADJOURNMENT:  Upon the motion of Mr. Cullen, seconded by Ms. Pierce, the meeting 

adjourned at 3:10 PM. 
 
Submitted by: 
 

       Donna W. Byers 
Staff Secretary 

  



 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

Minutes of Meeting 
November 17, 2011 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Edward Kisselback; David R. Nyman; Walter S. Wydro; Raymond 

(Skip) W. Goodnoe; Darrin M. Hoffman; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. 
Pierce 

STAFF PRESENT: Lynn T. Bush; David P. Johnson; Timothy A. Koehler; Alice J. Lambert; 
Dennis P. Livrone; Charles T. McIlhinney; Margaret A. McKevitt; 
Michael A. Roedig; David A. Sebastian 

GUESTS: Santo Gairo, Bucks County Women’s Advocacy Coalition; Robert 
Cotton, New Britain Township; Larry Menkes, DVGBC, Bucks-Mont 
Branch; Bill Wert, Dublin Borough; Judy Hendrixson, Doylestown 
Township Planning Commission; Steven Nelson, Resident, Doylestown; 
Jim Nietupsh, East Rockhill Township; Warren E. Woldorf, Newtown 
Borough Planning Commission 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Kisselback called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. with a moment of 

silence and the pledge of allegiance. 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: Mrs. Bush provided an overview of the comprehensive plan explaining 

the purpose, background, and guiding principles contained in the plan. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT AND QUESTIONS: Mr. Kisselback polled members of the public for comment 
or questions. 
 

1) Santo Gairo – Provided comment on the housing section of the plan, specifically the 
Strategies and Actions section. Mr. Gairo stated he would like the plan to contain 
meaningful action steps achievable to make a difference in the provision of housing in the 
county. He stated the plan should provide strategies to address current housing issues 
(e.g., mortgage foreclosures) and include feasible housing projections. 

2) Jim Nietupsh – Provided comment regarding the historic preservation section of the 
plan. Mr. Nietupsh stated that preserving property should be voluntary rather than 
regulatory. He would like the tone in the historic preservation section modified before it 
is approved to reflect the rights of property owners. He is concerned about the 
inventorying of historic properties. He feels it is should be at the discretion of the 
property owner. 

3) Larry Menkes – Provided comment on the Energy Conservation section of the plan. Mr. 
Menkes stated he was concerned with vague language in the section. Mr. Menkes stated 
he would like the county to use this plan to help increase energy conservation in the 
county. He stated there are good programs (e.g., EnergyWorks) to assist property owners 
in their efforts to increase efficiency. He stated that folks are being trained to provide 
energy saving services to the public but are not able to find employment. Mr. Menkes 
stressed the importance of planning for energy losses in the county. 

 



 

Mr. Kisselback thanked the public for their comments and stressed the importance of the Bucks 
County Comprehensive Plan for Bucks County municipalities. Mr. Kisselback thanked the staff 
and board for their efforts in crafting a very well written county comprehensive plan. Mrs. Bush 
also thanked the staff for their hard work producing the plan. 
 
ACTION ITEMS:  
 

Mr. Kisselback called for a motion to incorporate changes to the plan as outlined in 
Attachment A dated November 17, 2011, and Mr. Nyman’s recommendation to add “…and 
support municipal efforts to that end.” to bullet number nine on page 216 of the plan, and 
other formatting or editorial changes deemed necessary for final edition of the plan. Upon a 
motion by Mr. Nyman, seconded by Mr. Hoffman, the board unanimously adopted all 
necessary changes appropriate to the plan. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Pellegrino and seconded by Mrs. Pierce, the board unanimously 
adopted BCPC Resolution No. 2011-1 forwarding the proposed new Bucks County 
Comprehensive Plan 2011 to, and recommending its adoption by, the Bucks County Board of 
Commissioners. 

 
ADJOURNMENT: Upon a motion of Mr. Nyman, seconded by Ms. Pierce, the meeting adjourned 

at 8:10 PM. 
 
Submitted by: 
 

       Margie McKevitt 
Staff Secretary 

  



 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Executive Director’s Report 

November 2011 
 
 
Presentation to County Commissioners at CCAP – I attended the fall meeting of the County 
Commissioners Association of Pennsylvania in Hershey, where I gave a presentation on 
“Planning Beyond the Basics: How your County Planning Commission can help you do your 
Job.”  Many members in the audience were newly-elected County Commissioners who are not 
familiar with the basic duties of the planning commission. The course description said: 
 

County Commissioners may think that their county planning director’s role is limited to land use, 
zoning and development.  But experience across the Commonwealth shows that county planning 
staff can get involved in much more, from 9-1-1 operations and emergency services routing to 
modernizing board of assessment operations to analyzing Census data to establish and map voting 
district boundaries.  This session, presented by planning directors from Bucks County and 
Cumberland County, both former presidents of the County Planning Directors Association of 
Pennsylvania, will highlight the services and capabilities available to County Commissioners that 
will help you meet your mandates and provide services to residents. 

 
Red Cross Homeless Shelter – The Lower Bucks Chapter of the Red Cross has run a homeless 
shelter in Bristol Township for about 14 years. The Red Cross is consolidating its chapters, and 
the Lower Bucks Chapter was taken over by the Red Cross of Southeastern Pennsylvania. They 
did not want to run the shelter, so after several months, it was agreed that Family Services 
Association (Bucks County) would own and operate the shelter. We have been working with 
other county agencies to insure a smooth transition. This includes making sure that the lease of 
land (shelter is on county-owned property) is transferred to Family Services and that grants from 
the county to the shelter are transferred. The shelter will be called the “Bucks County Emergency 
Homeless Shelter.” 
 
Bucks County Hazard Mitigation Plan – The County Commissioners adopted our County 
Hazard Mitigation Plan, and municipalities are working on getting their adoptions to us and the 
PEMA and FEMA. We are applying for some recovery funds for damage caused by Tropical 
Storm Lee, so it is important to have this in place. 
 
Grants to Bucks County Municipalities – Four Bucks County boroughs will get planning 
grants from PennDOT: Chalfont Borough, Dublin Borough, Penndel Borough, and Perkasie 
Borough.  
  



 

BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 

November 2011 
 

PLANNING SERVICES 
 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 

 Meeting Attendance – Attended the regular planning commission meetings of Sellersville 
and Perkasie boroughs. 

 Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan – Prepared chapters related to demographic and 
development trends, historic resources, natural resources, and goals and objectives. Prepared 
a draft appendix explaining U.S. Census demographic discrepancies occurring in adjacent 
Langhorne Manor Borough. Conducted a walking tour of the residential neighborhoods and 
other locations with local representatives to assess issues and opportunities. Provided 
information and recommendations for town hall meetings which will be part of the public 
input process.  

 Hulmeville Borough Zoning Ordinance – Completed and delivered final draft of the zoning 
ordinance. 

 Perkasie Borough Zoning Ordinance Update – Received comments on the draft zoning 
ordinance from planning commission members. 

 
Bucks County Comprehensive Plan 
 Submitted Comprehensive Plan to Planning Commission Board for consideration and 

approval at the November 2 and November 17 public meetings.  
 

Planning Information and Agency Coordination 
 Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, 

development proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations, floodplain, 
and community background (or profiles). 

 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 
 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 
 Completed evaluation of potential projects that could use Community Development Block 

Grant and Coastal Zone Management Program funding. 
 Reviewed and commented on draft DVRPC regional housing plan. 
 Attended AIA Design on the Delaware conference-Philadelphia, PA. 

 

Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 
 19 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 
 1 Sketch Plans 
 8 Municipals 
 3 Sewage Facility Planning Module 
 3 Traffic Impact Studies 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 

Bucks County Comprehensive Plan 
 Reviewed strategies and actions outlined in natural resources, water supply and energy 

sections of comprehensive plan. 



 

 Began to consider which strategies can be implemented as part of a county integrated water 
resources plan and began to identify existing integrated water resource plans. 

 Reviewed Executive Summary. 
 Attended the Comprehensive Plan public meeting. 
 
Energy Efficiency 
 Participated in multi-county conference call regarding DVRPC’s LED Traffic Signal 

Conversion Program and changes or updates to DVRPC’s Circuit Rider Program and 
potential County-level Trainings.  

 
Bucks Employees Green Initiative (BEGIN) Committee 
 Met with EPA food composting grant project partners to further refine educational outreach 

efforts and programs. Discussed presentations, on-site tours and educational outreach 
programs to offer. Discussed brochures to distribute to compost bin recipients as well as 
participants of workshops. 

 Delivered compost bins and rain barrels to the Bucks County Youth Center. 
 Begin to formulate timeframe for educational programs and distribution event.  
 Prepared for and conducted quarterly BEGIN Committee meeting via tele-conference (two 

locations: Almshouse and Courthouse). 
 
Stormwater and Flood Management Planning 
 Continued to assist municipalities with the implementation of the Neshaminy Creek 

Watershed Stormwater Management Plan, especially with implementing the administrative 
language changes to the volume control criteria requirements.  

 Assisting with revisions to the Pennypack Creek Act 167 Stormwater Management Plan  in 
coordination with Montgomery and Philadelphia Counties. Bucks County Board of 
Assessment provided some data to calculate impervious surface averages within the 
watershed. Waiting on Temple University for final decision.  

 Researching information and developing resources to assist municipalities with the revised 
NPDES MS4 permit. 

 Attended the Municipal Training Workshop on the new Stormwater Management 
Regulations required by the NPDES MS4 permit at Lafayette College. 

 Assisted the public and Township Officials with the preliminary floodplain maps distributed 
by FEMA and the Floodplain Viewer Tool.  

 
Coastal Zone Planning 
 Began preparing presentations for December 8th CZM Steering Committee interviews for 

four applications for Coastal Zone Management grants for FY2012 as follows: 
1. Neshaminy Creek Watershed Sediment Reduction Plan; 
2. Bucks County Non-point Source Pollution Prevention Educational Outreach; 
3. Bucks County Illegal Dumping Prevention Program; 
4. Mill (Otter) – Queen Anne Creek Greenway Multiuse Trail Feasibility Study. 

 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Plan 
 Continued work on Executive Summary version of the plan. 
 Confirmed funding details of the Phase II of the Delaware Valley Regional Planning 

Commission’s Regional Trails Funding Program. Began preparation of application, and 
continued search for internal match funding, for application for Neshaminy Creek Trail 
Feasibility Study. 



 

Hazard Mitigation Planning 
 Prepare Memo, Resolution Request, and summary information for both County and 

municipal adoption of HM Plan. 
 
Recycling and Solid Waste 
 Attended a Pennsylvania Recycling Summit to discuss effective outreach methods and 

current status. 
 Attended regional (five-county) HHW planning meeting in Delaware Counties to review 

2011 and plan for 2012. 
 Continued initial steps in implementation of the EPA food composting grant. 

 
Public Information/Education 
 Participated in selection of presenters for the annual Watershed Congress Along The 

Schuylkill to be held in March 2012. 
 

TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM 
 
TRANSPORTATION 
 

General Transportation Planning 
 Continued developing background information for Intersection Safety Study. 
 Conducted Bicycle Task Force Meeting. 
 Attended U.S. 202 Section 700 Task Force Meeting. 
 
Public Transportation 
 Attended SEPTA City/County meeting and fare proposal system meeting. 
 
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 
 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development 

reviews. 
 
Transportation Improvement Program 
 Provided TIP information to various individuals and agencies.  

 
Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC)  
 Attended Regional Transportation Committee Meeting. 
 Attended Transportation Operations Task Force Meeting. 
 
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM 
 

Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 
 Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 
 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 
 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 
 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 
 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 
 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 
 Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 
 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 
 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 
 Continued technical support for MapJazz GIS Web Viewer. 
 Continued development of GIS datasets for inclusion in ESRI hosted Community Map. 



 

 Began editor processes of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 
 Provided technical support related to GIS Floodplain viewer. 
 Began development of county-wide preserved properties web viewer. 

 
GIS Map Production 
 Continued work on the Community Maps Project. 
 
GIS Transportation 
 Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 






































































































































































































	BCPC Meeting Packet July 2011
	BCPC Meeting Packet June July 11
	july mtg_20110630082446

	BCPC Meeting Packet Aug 2011
	Meeting Room Dedication
	BCPC Meeting Packet Aug 2011
	CertificationAreaNavalHousing(072511)
	aug.,2011 bcpc mtg._20110728133608

	BCPC Meeting Packet Sept 2011
	BCPC Meeting Packet Oct 2011.pdf
	BCPC Meeting Packet Oct 2011

	BCPC Meeting Packet Nov 2011
	BCPC Meeting Packet Dec 2011



